‘ City of Hogansville
’\j— City Council
/ Meeting Agenda
ANSVILLE

Monday, December 21, 2020 — 7:00

HOG

GEORGIA
Meeting will be held at Hogansville City Hall

Mayor: William C. Stankiewicz 2021 City Manager: Jonathan H. Lynn
Council Post 1: Reginald Jackson 2021 City Clerk: Lisa E. Kelly
Council Post 2: Marichal Price 2021 City Attorney: Alex Dixon
Council Post 3: Mandy Neese* 2023 Interim Chief of Police: Jeffrey Sheppard
Council Post 4: Mark Ayers 2023
Council Post 5: Toni Striblin 2023 * Mavor Pro-Tem

Regular Meeting — 7:00 pm

Call to Order - Mayor Stankiewicz
Pledge & Invocation

Consent Agenda
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine in nature and will be approved by one blanket
motion,

1. Approval of Agenda: Regular Meeting, December 21, 2020

2. Approval of Minutes: Regular Meeting, December 7, 2020

3. Approval of Minutes: Special Called Meeting, December 17, 2020

Presentation
. Greg Ashworth - Presentation of Funding Options Comparison - USDA vs. GEFA - Water Infrastructure
Improvements

New Business
. Wastewater Treatment Plant Drive Paving — Bid Approval — Piedmont Paving, Inc.
2. Consideration and Approval of Amendment with Charles Abbott & Associates for Building Inspections,
Permitting & Plan Review Activities
3. Adoptions of Updated Permit Fee Schedule
4. Legal Services Agreement — USDA City Hall Loan
5. Tower Trail Phase V — Change Order

City Manager’s Report
1. Police Department Update

Council Member Reports

1. Council Member Jackson
Council Member Price
Council Member Neese
Council Member Ayers
Council Member Striblin

AESESRS

Mayor’s Report

Adjourn

Upcoming Dates & Events
1. December 24, 2020 & December 25, 2020 | City Hall closed for Christmas Holiday
2. December 31, 2020 & January 1, 2021 | City Hall closed for New Year Holiday
3. January 4, 2021 | 7:00 pm — Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council of the City of Hogansville

Meeting to be held at Hogansville City Hall, 400 East Main Street, Hogansville Ga. 30230



. . __ .._.r_...
.._fr b =__ Rise AL
Y Ny T . ._L
..\_f_ nm:....# L ;_p

e Sy r.l
._ ___. .—_. .—..‘.l- .“..u. q_‘l N
', ARl

RIS -

. S =N

A
. | r

.
_ s
L,

bl
-I
¥
'_
|
- 5

REPET s R T L s o =L N R

T R
,._“.___ .._ r

Al Terichd _:._4.? S
f..__ f?:w im

$ ¢
i
] L

s - r_..___._” I n__—__, L
.1._._.. -. f R ... ___.._..._. d.__;._:__..r.___..t
.A. i -r_. . __. ._ __.“__ __ ___.__ .. . P b T ._ i “__ﬂu _.__ﬁ..._ S ‘. ,_ 5
g r‘-_ﬁ .__._.__. _h..__.. j_ 1.:? Pl - T ___...__L_ ;.. ._..J_
icn— JE .,._..F... 4__ ._._u._ 4 RS- ine T B LR ._ m.ﬂ +.__ b

_1 i
_..n. ?_1...1;... F.
il f_., t?._w:_ S
i
M._L._ ﬁﬁrﬁ,:.
_

._. .

" . ) : L g I S T : - I E L b | = 1 ]

b . _L m. oL o O i = mr . N P r_._._..__.. 3 s

N .-F. U oy e LA ! ™ ey L L y :-..:....,.f?.- i)

HH_ __._m_r_ I-‘nﬁ..._ﬁ— ~f4.h . : . - gy 1 20 S0 1S - : .“ _.__—..”_.__ _____.ﬂ.- 2
‘v *.-_ . . = ! $y* - :

-.—.. L.‘N-..—.__.- vl 4%

— llllll e T EE—— o —— 1-|I|




]
...........

ANSVILLE

GEORGA reeee— e

HOG

Regular Meeting
December 7, 2020

Meeting held at Hogansville City Hall, 400 East Main Street, Hogansville GA 30230

Call to Order: Mayor Stankiewicz called the regular meeting to order at 7:00 pm. Present were Mayor
Stankiewicz and Council Members Reginald Jackson, Mandy Neese, Mark Ayers and Toni Striblin. Also
present were City Manager Jonathan Lynn, City Attorney Alex Dixon, Interim Police Chief Jeffrey
Sheppard and Planning and Development Director Lynne Miller. Council Member Marichal Price was
absent,

Counciiman Jackson gave an invocation, after which the group stood for the Pledge of Allegiance.

PRESENTATION

Mayor and Council presented a banner of the City’s new logo to Shannon Belletti, who won the design
contest for that logo, and thanked her.

CONSENT AGENDA

Motion: Council Member Striblin moved that the Consent Agenda — including this meeting’s agenda as
well as minutes of the regular City Council meeting held 11-16-2020 — be approved as presented. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Neese.

Discussion: None

Roll Call Vote: Jackson (Yea), Neese (Yea), Ayers (Yea), Striblin {Yea).

Motion Passed 4-0

NEW BUSINESS

1. Sign Variance -- Speedway.
Motion: Council Member Striblin moved that City Council approve Speedway LLC’s sign variance
request to increase the height of a proposed pole sign facing the Interstate from the City’s 30-foot
maximum sign height to 160 feet instead, and to allow two signs to face the same direction, namely the
former Wendy’s sign that faces East Main and a 29°5” tall goalpost sign that would also face East Main.
These signs would serve a proposed fuel sales and convenience store at the former Wendy’s site, and are
patt of a sign package more fully described in Speedway’s formal variance request dated November 9,
2020. Property address is 1892 East Main Street, Tax Map Nos. 0023 001 003 and 0023 001 002. Mz,
Robert Chepke of Speedway was present for questions, The motion was seconded by Council Member
Neese.
Discussion: None
Roll Call Vote: Neese (Yea), Ayers (Yea), Striblin (Yea), Jackson (Yea)
Motion Passed 4-0

Page | 1
December 7, 2020



2. Board Appointments — Meriwether — Hogansville Joint Development Authority
Motion: Council Member Neese moved that the City Council reappoint George Bailey, Fred Higgins,
John McKibben, Jimmy Russell and Bill Stankiewicz to the Meriwether — Hogansville Joint Development
Authority, for one-year terms extending to September 30, 2021. The motion was seconded by Council
Member Neese.
Roll Call Vote: Ayers (Yea), Striblin (Yea), Jackson (Yea), Neese (Yea).
Motion Passed 4-0

3. 2019/2020 Audited Budget Amendment
Motion: Council Member Neese moved that the Council adjust the City’s 7-1-2019 — 6-30-2020 budget
as recommended by the City’s auditor Wilcox and Bivens, to match actual expenditures and revenues for
that period. This follows the auditor’s annual financial audit, which is now complete. The final
recommended budget for this past fiscal year (July 2019 — June 2020):

- an increase in revenue of $281,733 for a General Fund Revenue budget of $2,448,060;

- adecrease in expenditures of $50,582 for a General Fund Expenditure budget of $2,887,825;

- adecrease in our deficit (gap) from expenditures over revenues in the amount of $332,315; and
- an increase in our unobligated fund balance of $181,425 to a total of $489,543.

The motion was seconded by Councilman Jackson.

Discussion: City Manager Jonathan Lynn explained that these are net positives for the City, in terms of
revenue increases and expenditure decreases. This will also decrease the City’s debt, Mr. Lynn added.
Roll Call Vote: Striblin (Yea), Jackson (Yea), Neese (Yea), Ayers (Yea)

Motion Passed 4-(0

ADJOURNMENT

Motion: Council Member Neese moved that the meeting be adjourned. The motion was seconded by
Council Member Jackson.

Discussion: None.

Roll Call Vote: Jackson (Yea), Neese (Yea), Ayers (Yea), Striblin (Yea).

Motion Passed 4-0

Mayor Stankiewicz adjourned this meeting at 7:18 PM.

Respectfully,

\/ijm@ ,u«j/ (/é/l\,(g@/\__/

Lynne é Miller, AICP
Planning and Development Director

City of Hogansville

Page | 2
December 7, 2020



N/
e
HOGANSVILLE

GEORGIA

Special Meeting
December 17, 2020

Meeting held at Hogansville City Hall, 400 East Main Street, Hogansville GA 30230

Call to Order: Mayor Stankiewicz called the special meeting to order at 10:05 pm. Present were
Mayor Stankiewicz and Council Members Marichal Price, Mandy Neese and Toni Striblin. Also
present were City Manager Jonathan Lynn, City Attorney Alex Dixon, Assistant City
Manager/City Clerk Lisa Kelly, Administrative Assistant LeAnn Lehigh and Planning and
Development Director Lynne Miller. United States Department of Agriculture Area Specialist
Tamika Lucas was present via phone. Council Members Reggie Jackson and Mark Ayers were
absent.

PRESENTATION

Tamika Lucas, Area Specialist with USDA, read aloud a letter of conditions for a $373,000 forty-
year USDA loan for renovations to the former PNC bank building to become the new City Hall.
The letter of conditions was dated 14 December 2020. The loan’s interest rate would be 2.125%.

Motion: Council Member Striblin moved that the City Council authorize Mayor Bill
Stankiewicz to sign the USDA Loan Security Agreement and related paperwork for the $373,000
USDA loan for the PNC bank renovation project, with the City to provide a $23,500 match. The
motion was seconded by Council Member Neese.

Discussion: None

Roll Call Vote: Price (Yea), Neese (Yea), Striblin (Yea).

Motion Passed 3-0

ADJOURNMENT

Motion: Council Member Neese moved that the meeting be adjourned. The motion was
seconded by Council Member Price.

Discussion: None.

Roll Call Vote: Neese (Yea), Striblin (Yea), Price (Yea)

Motion Passed 3-0

Mayor Stankiewicz adjourned this meeting at 10:20 AM.

Lynne S. Miller, AICP

Planning and Development Director
City of Hogansville

Respectfully,

Page | 1
December 17, 2020



B q.__ -___“-..’“..- ,

i L -

Y

S

o .~

Lty e
o ) 4

.| e kB 1". 4 J... _-. ' = 1
d i L n._ -
FLrs LT .a.....T....:-. i

Lo T AT .r_“._ ol I [PVt Y

L . { - : : _ |._.._-.|
e N AR, T n




CITY COUNCIL Jonathan Lynn, City Manager
Mayor Bill Stankiewicz Lisa Kelly, Assistant City Manager
Reginald Jackson, Post 1 Alex Dixon, City Attorney
Marichal Price, Post 2 \

Mandy Neese, Post 3 400 E Main St
Mark Ayers, Post 4 Hogansville GA 30230-1196
Toni Striblin, Post 5 HO( | AN SV]LL E 706-637-8629 | cityofhogansville.org

GEORGIA

COUNCIL ACTION FORM

MEETING DATE: December 21, 2020 SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Lynn

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of Resolution Accepting Bid from Piedmont Paving Inc. for paving at Waste
Water Treatment Plant ($86,934)

CLASSIFICATION (City Attorney must approve all ordinances, resolutions and contracts as to form)

I:I Ordinance (No. ) D Contract I:' Information Only I:I Public Hearing

XResolution (No. ) I:I Ceremonial |:I Discussion/Action J Other

BACKGROUND (Includes description, background, and justification)

On December 8, 2020, the City, through Turnipseed Engineers, received bids for the paving of the access road into the
new Waste Water Treatment Plant.

There were three (3) bid submissions for this solicitation:

- Piedmont Paving Inc. (Newnan, GA) $86.934.00;
- ShepCo Paving Inc. (Alpharetta, GA) $96,024.25; and
- McElroy, Inc. (Zebulon, GA) $134,723.35.

Funding for this project has been set aside within the reimbursement from the CARES Act Funding. No general fund
impact.

BUDGETING & FINANCIAL IMPACT (Includes project costs and funding sources)

$86,934 will be taken from the above referenced source with no impact to General Fund.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Include possible options for consideration)

Staff recommends the City Council approve the resolution and award the bid to Piedmont Paving Inc. as the low bid
for this project.




Y@ TURNIPSEED

VENGINEERS

Mayor and Council
City of Hogansville

400 East Main Street
Hogansville, Georgia 30230

Attn:  Mr. Jonathan Lynn, City Manager
Re:  City of Hogansville

WPCP Access Road
Project No. 310684

December 14, 2020

ATLANTA
AUGUSTA
ST. SIMONS ISLAND

We have checked the bids received December 8, 2020, on subject project. A tabulation

of the bids received is as follows:

Contractor Bid Amount

1. Piedmont Paving, Inc. $86,934.90
Newnan, Georgia

2. ShepCo Paving, Inc. $96,024.25
Alpharetta, Georgia

3.  McLeRoy, Inc. $134,723.35

Zebulon, Georgia

As indicated, the low bidder is Piedmont Paving, Inc. of Newnan, Georgia. Since the low
bidder appears to have adequate experience, technical ability and financial capability to
complete the project, we recommend contract award be made to Piedmont Paving, Inc.,

of Newnan, Georgia in the amount of $86,934.90.

We have enclosed a certified tabulation of the bids received and a sample resolution the

City should consider adopting.

A copy of the System for Award Management (SAM) search results is also enclosed.

Atlanta = 2255 Cumberland Parkway = Building400 = Atlanta, Georgia 30339 = 770-333-0700




Mayor and Council December 14, 2020
City of Hogansville / 310684 Page 2 of 2

These results document no active records of exclusion or debarment of participants in this
project were found in a search of the federal SAM database.

If the contract is awarded, we will proceed with preparation of the contract documents for
execution by both the contractor and the City.

Yours truly,

O 0

Greg Ashworth, P.E.
Turnipseed Engineers

GJA:sn
Enclosures




RESOLUTION

WHEREAS bids were received by the City of Hogansville, December 8, 2020, Roadway
Improvements, WPCP Access Road, and

WHEREAS the low, responsible, responsive bidder is Piedmont Paving, Inc. of Newnan,
Georgia with a bid in the amount of $86,934.90, and

WHEREAS the low bidder, Piedmont Paving, Inc., appears to have the necessary

financial and technical ability to complete the project,

BE I'T THEREFORE resolved the City of Hogansville hereby makes contract award of E

the construction contract to the low bidder, Piedmont Paving, Inc. of Newnan, Georgia, in the
amount of $86,934.90,

THIS RESOLUTION was passed by a vote of to at a regular meeting of the

Mayor and Council on

CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA

William Stankiewicz, Mayor

Attest:

Clerk




SAM Search Results
1.ist of records matching your search for :

Search Term : PIEDMONT PAVING, INC.*
Record Status: Active

b b

No Search Results

e T R ELURE

December 14, 2020 11:55 AM hitps:/ihwww.sam.gov Page 1 of 1




CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS

ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS - WPCP ACCESS ROAD IS A CORRECT TABULATION
PROJECT NO. 310684
CERTIFIED BID TABULATION '

BIDS RECEIVED DECEMBER 8, 2020 Greg Ashw%rth, P.E.
Turnipseed Engineers
Atlanta, Georgia

CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA Piedmont Paving, Inc.
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS - WPCP ACCESS ROAD Newnan, Georgia

ITEM
NO. QTY. UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE  TOTAL PRICE
=== | |
|1. 1 LS |Traffic Control $2.910.00 $2.910.00
| | ‘ |
12. 1 LS |Roadway Preparation | $6,105.00 $6,105.00
| | N |
\3. 370 | GAL |Bitum Tack Coat | $5.27 $1,949.90)

| IRm;cycled Asphalt Concrete 19 MM
4, 425 | TON |Superpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum | $98.00| $41,650.00)
\ Matl. And H Lime

IRecycled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM
5. | 305 | TON |Superpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum | $110.00 $33,550.00]
Matl. And H Lime

6. 100 LF |Solid Traffic Stripe, 5" White $3.30 $330.00

e | L
|7. ] EA lPavement Marking, handicap Symbol $220.00 $220.00
i [ S—
g | EA Handicap Sign Including Galvanized $220.00 $220.00
l_ ISteel Post
TOTAL AMOUNT BID, ITEMS 1 THROUGH 8 INCLUSIVE, THE AMOUNT OF: $86,934.90

Turnipseed Engineers I
Hogansville/310684 Certified Bid Tabulation




CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA ShepCo Paving, Inc.
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS - WPCP ACCESS ROAD Alpharetta, Georgia
ITEM
NO. ~QTY. UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE  TOTAL PRICE ;
. 1 | LS [Traffic Control $8,150.00 $8,150.00
I |
i
2, i LS |Roadway Preparation $5,400.00 $5,400.00
IB. i 370 | GAL |Bitum Tack Coat $6.50 $2,405.00 |
Recyceled As}halt Concrete 19 MM ] |
4, 425 | TON [Superpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum $104.11 $44,246.75 |
Matl. And H Lime |
Recycled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM %
5. 305 | TON |Superpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum $114.50 $34,922.50
- l |Mati. And H Lime
6. 100 LF  |Solid Traffic Stripe, 5" White $4.50 $450.;;]
7. 1 EA [Pavement Marking, handicap Symbol $250.00 $250.00
I g (| pa Handicap Sign Including Galvanized $200.00 $200.00
l Steel Post |
TOTAL AMOUNT BID, ITEMS 1 THROUGH 8 INCLUSIVE, THE AMOUNT OF; $96,024.25

Turnipseed Engineers
Hogansvilie/310684

Certified Bid Tabulation :




CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA
ROADWAY IMPROVEMENTS - WPCP ACCESS ROAD

McLeRoy, Inc.
Zebulon, Georgia

Turnipseed Engineers

Hogansville/310684

ITEM
NO. __QTY. UNIT DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE  TOTAL PRICE
. ! LS |Traffic Control $3,500.00 $3,500.00
2. 1 LS |Roadway Preparation $45,650.,00 $45,650.00
3. 370 | GAL |Bitum Tack Coat $5.50 $2,035.00
Recycled Asphait Concrete 19 MM -
4, 425 TON i{Superpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum $112.85 $47,961.25]
Matl. And H Lime
Recycled Asphalt Concrete 9.5 MM !
S. 305 | TON |Supetpave, GP1 or 2 Including Bitum | $112.22 $34,227.10
| Matl, And H Lime
16. 100 LF |Solid Traffic Stripe, 5" White $6.00 $600.00
7. I 1 EA [Pavement Marking, handicap Symbol $350.00 $350.00
l | | | | :
9 [ EA Handicap Sign Including Galvanized $400.00 $400.00
tSteel Post
TOTAL AMOUNT BID, ITEMS 1 THROUGH 8 INCLUSIVE, THE AMOUNT OF: $134,723.35

i

Certified Bid Tabulation




CITY COUNCIL Jonathan Lynn, City Manager
Mayor Bill Stankiewicz Lisa Kelly, Assistant City Manager

Reginald Jackson, Post 1 Alex Dixon, City Attorney
Marichal Price, Post 2 \

Mandy Neese, Post 3 400 E Main St
Mark Ayers, Post 4 Hogansville GA 30230-1196
Toni Striblin, Post 5 H O( | AN SVILL E 706-637-8629 | cityofhogansville.org

GEORGIA

COUNCIL ACTION FORM

MEETING DATE: December 21, 2020 SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Lynn
AGENDA TITLE: Amendment to Agreement with Charles Abbott Associates Inc. for Building Services

CLASSIFICATION (City Attorney must approve all ordinances, resolutions and contracts as to form)

X Contract I:l Information Only D Public Hearing

I:I Ordinance (No. )

l:l Resolution (No. ) l:l Ceremonial XDiscussion/Action |:| Other

BACKGROUND (I.ncludes description, background, and justification)

The City of Hogansville currently uses Charles Abbott Associates Inc. for our building services including inspections and
permit review. The City would like to have included in this agreement those services involved in engineering plan
review activities, which is something that we have no qualified staff member to handle. This revised agreement

includes those hourly rates to be paid only as needed and those rates are passed along to those applying for
permits/development.

The previous version of the agreement includes that the City pay 75% of all building permit fees collected to Charles
Abbott Associates. This amount is proposed to drop to 65% in the revised agreement providing more revenue
remaining with the City.

BUDGETING & FINANCIAL IMPACT (Includes project costs and funding sources)

The city will increase its share of revenue split with CAA based on revised agreement.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Include possible options for consideration)

Staff recommends that the revised agreement with Charles Abbott Associates Inc. be approved.




Charles Abbott Associates, Inc.

I.-l".-. i _- £
; il ot i A
SR Lk .
Oy == - ¥ & P il
. L
i o
y, -'.‘,,'."I

ol ¢ L

e i

e, . : i F

y - - ' A { LF: n L L % -
£ ' -0 . , E /1 | , . e, o e i 2l '
i r ' e ! ‘ » } I y - =
: 5 i L ] -
: - . ") ¥ < . A B e s -
; ¥ T ) & & B ;! =
j 1y 3 i o e iy 5 1 . - -
1 - il ] - % T -
L - - s 5 : -+ 5 = wh is e - i b d T
" a | 5 i . - 3 _* i j - "
; i i - sl - - g . . '
2 . « " I = Y .“ - I il r
s ) K. J : - A
L } - ! e - a St ¢ - = -
P 4 = - " ad - F - o Iy 5 i
b = - - E | T e 5 - 3
- - u, . I H - il B =
e = = [ L gL . N F, bl
1 ; =1l ) o ’ ] =
L il Ly o ® v =
- . - | _— K
& ?l_ 1 =4 _ i . . L B ]
i e ' el o o .
4 [ w i3 1 . -
i : = e s § ¥
S U
: . J AL = : ol ’ § -
1 ¢ S -
. - 15 - = 1
) i ) 1¢ it Tk i a
a Pk - e o X = -
3 R . !
e i —_— - — - - . - k.

“Helping public agencies provide effective and efficient municipal services to improve communities since 1984”

Proposal for

Professional Building Safety & Engineering
Services

City of Hogansville

Mr. Jonathan Lynn, City Manager
400 E Main St
Hogansville GA 30230

Charles Abbott Associates, Inc.

100 Hartsfield Centre Parkway, Suite 500
Atlanta, GA 30354

Toll Free: (866) 530-4980

WWW.Caa.inc



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Eaidato L Lon d LTl = L T va—— 3
Company DesSCriPtiON i e e sra s s e e e s resanssrsasasssssnsnsnserens 5
R O S OUI S . .. ittt et e e e e et e s s s bas e e s s s b st s e e ma s eaaeee s e ennneeanaes 6
e e S —— 7
BUIlAING OffiCIAl SEIVICES ...cvvviiiiciiiii et e e s s s s e s st s s esenneseesens P
Residential and Commercial Building Inspection Services........uovvvveeieieieiceeeeeeennnn. 8
Residential and Commercial Building Plan REVIEW ........cuuiieeiiiiiiiieiiiiiiiseeieeveieeeanes 9
Civil Engineering Plan REVIEW...... .o iiiiiiiiieiiiiccsierivi s eseeerissaes s e ss e brnare s s e eseessnnnes 1
Permitling SOtWAIE ........oiiieiiiie e s s s s e s ea s s sean e e sennas 12
R T e o L T ————— 13
e 1 I = 1111 T P TR 13
ez o O T — 13
T Inglisy UBO s s e R S T T i sk s 14
(VAT 1E= T o =T O 1 = 1 O T 15
Brian Epstein, CBO.......ccooiiiiii e, OSSR — 16
WEE T 3 s {1 Y L O U VOO — 17
L - S 18
G OEL PRUDOSHT o s s i i o s i s A s s mn s s AR A SRS AR RARA SRR 21
Building Plan Reviewand INSpection ServiCes ... .. sissvssssimsnssiiseisicns 21
Civil Engineering Plan Review and Consulting Services..........ccccevvevvevieeeeeeeeeennnnnne. 21

professional government services



INTRODUCTION LETTER

In follow up to our meeting on November 30, 2020, Charles Abbott Associates, Inc. (CAA) is
pleased to submit the enclosed Proposal for Professional Building Safety & Engineering
Services to the City of Hogansville (City).

Since 1984, CAA has been providing a growing number of cities and counties with
outstanding Building and Safety Services, including the City of Hogansville since 2016. Over
the years, our vast knowledge, experience, and proven ability to satisfy the needs of
communities of all sizes has earned us the reputation of being one of the most qualified firms
in the industry.

Our selected project team brings many years of related project experience together with an
expertise in the management of similar services, making CAA exceptionally well qualified to
continue to provide the requested services to the City with our team of highly experienced,
licensed, and ICC certified individuals to support your Building Safety & Engineering Service
needs. We currently have staff operating in and providing services for numerous client
organizations in Georgia, ensuring consistent resource availability, fast response times, and
maximum efficiency. When CAA's experienced on-site plan review staff requires additional
expertise such as structural engineering support or other experts, CAA will provide daily pick-
up and delivery or complimentary over-night mail service of plans in addition to web based
digital review throughout the life of the contract. This along with the availability of our local
resources will allow us to respond quickly to all of the City’s needs and ensure all of our
turnaround times are met.

Our staff is technically qualified, trained, properly licensed and certified under Georgia State
Minimum Standards Mandatory Codes to provide all anticipated services, including public or
private project plan review, structural plan review, building code compliance review, as well
as building inspections. Our team dedicated to the City is comprised of building & safety
experts led by Tim Inglis, CBO, who has well over 20 years of municipal experience and
multiple certifications.

CAA's Certified Building Officials have assisted
jurisdictions in achieving high Insured Services Office

(ISO) ratings. The ISO assesses each community on a l‘“
scale of 1 to 10 with regards to the administration and -=-""'

CODE COUNCIL
enforcement of the building codes and mitigation of =-=‘ PREFERRED

losses from natural hazards. CAA’s Georgia building ———t P RUVI D E R
departments are rated in the top 1% of Georgia’s

ISO ratings. This illustrates CAA's commitment to mitigating losses and enforcing codes to
iImprove safety in our communities. Additionally, the International Code Council (ICC) has
recently recognized CAA as a Preferred Provider.

INTERNATIONAL

[ATAT ™=

CAA's concept of delivering high quality service is different from other companies who
provide similar functions. CAA provides on-site staff to bridge the disconnect that can occur
between municipalities and contracted service providers. CAA staff will available in person at
the City offices as needed and as dictated by workload, as well as by phone. We align our
services with current City policies, making for a smooth transition that’ll go just about
unnoticed by the City and the public. This method of service delivery has allowed us to retain
our first client of 36 years, and we continue to be regularly commended for the staff's
commitment to excellent client and customer service by other clients as well.

CAA

professional government services



CAA realizes that every community is different, and we pride ourselves on tailoring our
services and pricing to meet each client's specific needs, whether it's supplemental or full-
service work. CAA proposes to continue to provide full-time personnel to handle all Building
Plan Review and Inspection Services for a percentage of the total fees calculated and
collected for the assigned project by the City, ensuring that the City never has to pay for
services out of pocket and reducing fixed costs, so department costs won't ever exceed
revenues. Civil engineering plan review will be provided at an hourly rate as needed. In
addition, CAA provides all materials, resources, tools and training required for our
professionals to perform their assigned duties, including vehicles, cell phones, iPads, and
other technology devices that enhance our service. All of our services as well as any
associated costs for labor, materials, equipment and supplies necessary to provide these
services are included in our fees. CAA will also continue to provide the standard version of
our own automated permit issuing software currently in use at the City at no additional
charge.

We have extensive systems in place to prepare detailed monthly, quarterly, and annual
reports of building department activities to the City. These reports include, but are not limited
to, staffing levels provided, staff hours expended, the number of plans reviewed, number of
inspections performed, and other financial, operational, and statistical information pertinent to
the services provided.

CAA is an industry leader in cross-training their employees in order to streamline the
inspection process. Each inspector is able to perform multiple discipline inspections, which is
both cost effective for the City and simplifies the process for contractors, causing less wait
times for inspections to be approved. We are devoted to keeping our certified and licensed
staff up-to-date on the latest practice, techniques and skills in their areas of specialization.
Our approach to training is ongoing and not just occasional, assuring clients of work that is in
full compliance to current standards. In addition, because our people are well trained, they
face no learning curve and are able to get to work immediately.

We hope to continue to partner with you in delivering exceptional public service to the
citizens and customers of Hogansville. Should any additional information be needed, please
contact Tim Inglis, Regional Director, at (470) 421-0046.

Sincerely,

CHARLES ABBOTT ASSOCIATES, INC.

Reed, PE
President

professional government services



COMPANY DESCRIPTION

Charles Abbott Associates, Inc. (CAA) was founded to meet the needs of cities just like
Hogansville. We are highly skilled and experienced at providing the right services at the right
time to ensure the City’s services are operating smoothly and efficiently. CAA will continue to
serve as the City's Building Department and provide building official services, building plan
reviews and inspections, as well as engineering plan review services. CAA inspectors are
ICC certified and have extensive experience with the enforcement of the State adopted
Codes and Standards.

CAA realizes that no two municipalities are alike, and we customize our services to meet the
particular needs of the constituents we serve at any one location. CAA currently provides
municipal services to over 20 local government partners with our local staff of over 30
professionals in the greater Atlanta area, including:

o City of Adairsville e City of Jackson

o City of Thomaston o City of Peachtree City
e City of Austell o City of Stockbridge
e Monroe County o City of South Fulton
e Bartow County e City of Dahlonega

e City of Tifton e City of Brookhaven
o Butts County o City of Forest Park
e Dooly County o City of Manchester
e Spalding County o City of Griffin

o City of Emerson o City of Riverdale

e City of Covington e City of Palmetto

o City of Albany/Dougherty County

The following promises demonstrate why CAA is the best-qualified service provider for the
City:

Service Above and Beyond: CAA professionals believe that just doing a “good” job is not
enough for our clients. Our aim is to excel. This means that we do not function simply by the
language of our contract, but that we constantly look out for the general good of the City,
local neighborhoods, and its residents. Our employees become part of your team and view
themselves as an extension of your staff in carrying out the duties of the City.

Innovations in Service Delivery: CAA continuously strives for innovations to improve public
services. Government must be more accessible to the citizens, more convenient, timelier in
response, more cost effective, and performance oriented. Accountability in government has
never been higher than it is today. We want to be your partner in delivering exceptional
public service and promoting the City. We pledge the full resources and backing of our firm to
ensure that the City is able to deliver outstanding, cost-effective public service of the highest
quality. CAA believes that embracing technology improves efficiency, provides a more
comprehensive level of customer service, and is the key for success both now and in the
future. As part of that effort, CAA offers to provide the following to the City:

> A standard version of CityTech Solutions, our own permit issuance and inspection
tracking tool with a user-friendly software system that allows for an efficient and
accountable level of service to be delivered to the City and contractors.

> Ability to utilize drones for physically difficult inspections

CAA

professional government services



> Ability to employ electronic plan review to shorten turnaround times and improve
communication

Customer Service: Our employees are passionate about customer service. In performing
our duties we are always willing to meet with clients for pre-design meetings, pre-submittal
meetings, or as needed to resolve complex code related plan review issues in the most
efficient manner possible. In addition, the staff at CAA brings a can-do attitude to their work -
always focused on efficiency and project success.

Responsive Project Management: By providing a cooperative work environment with all of
the entities responsible for project approval, we form a collaborative working relationship that
centers on successful project processing. We have the know-how to work closely with other
departments and outside agencies, resulting in a timely, seamless and efficient development
approval process. We minimize surprises that can lead to costly delays due to plan revisions
late in the approval process by beginning work early with the project design team involved
with major construction projects.

Availability to Meet with the City: CAA staff will be available to meet with City staff, the
design team, applicants, and/or contractors at the City’s request to discuss and resolve plan
review and code related issues. Our staff can be available to meet with staff on most issues
immediately, and within 24 hours of notice for project manager related issues. Those
meetings will be attended by our staff at no additional cost.

Resources

CAA's approach to providing excellence in customer service sets us apart from other
companies by providing a City Hall based staff as dictated by workload. We will provide ICC
Certified Plans Examiners and Registered Professional Engineers to handle plan review, as
well as ICC Certified Building Inspectors to meet the City’s needs. CAA staffing levels will
ensure that all City inspections and plan reviews are conducted in an efficient and courteous
manner. CAA has the experience, knowledge, and ability to manage such tasks,
assignments, and responsibilities while reducing the City’s financial and staffing burdens.
And when workload demands increase, CAA has the ability to add certified and qualified staff
to meet a change of scope or increase in workload.

professional government services



SCOPE OF WORK

CAA will be responsible for the review of commercial and residential plans, inspection of
commercial and residential buildings and structures, review of civil engineering plans,
providing inspection reports, and advising City staff as needed. CAA will ensure compliance
with the Georgia State Minimum Standards Mandatory Codes and construction related
zoning requirements.

Building Official Services

CAA will serve as the City’s Building Official and be responsible for the administration and
enforcement of the City’s various codes and ordinances related to building safety while
ensuring that the health and safety of the public are maintained through adherence to the
requirements established by law for the construction, alteration or use of new and existing
buildings. Through cooperation with other departments, CAA is able to assist in protecting
the economic interests of the community with the ultimate goal of ensuring the development
of safe and sustainable buildings for subsequent generations. Our Building Official Services
may include the following responsibilities:

Quality control review of plan
checks and inspections

Building codes updates and
adoption

Enforce building codes and ADA
Standards for Accessible Design
and the Georgia Accessibility Code

Enforce adopted codes with regard
to unsafe structures, existing
building, rental property
maintenance and energy code
compliance

Lend expertise in the plan review
and inspection of historic structures

Ensure compliance with zoning
conditions, certificate of
appropriateness, and conditions of
approval

Resolution of resident inquiries and
complaints

Processing of complex Building
Code Issues and dispute resolution

Building and Safety Procedures
Manual development and
maintenance

Ensure preparation of detailed
monthly, quarterly, and annual
reports of their activities to the City

Participate in pre-development
review and provide comments

Attendance of Planning
Commission and Council meetings
(as-needed)

Ensure the maintenance of all
necessary equipment to perform
the contracted services

Ensure proper staffing levels,
supervision and training of all
subordinate team members in
order to maintain the minimum
production standards

Ensure records maintenance of
approved plans and permits as
required by law

Develop training and educational
materials relevant to building safety
for dissemination to the elected
and appointed officials, contractors
and general public

Attend court hearings regarding
building code violations when
requested

CAA4

professional government services



o Attend meetings of other local
building officials to discuss
proposed code changes,
enforcement issues, new code
compliant technology and
alternatives

e Review for approval all alternative
materials, designs or methods of

construction for compliance with
the intent and provisions of the
code

Additional services as needed and
as requested by the City

Residential and Commercial Building Inspection Services

CAA assigned staff will perform inspection services as required by the City. We will meet or
exceed the State of Georgia's minimum qualifications for all position(s) in accordance with
0.C.G.A. § 8-2-26.1, and ensure the highest degree of compliance with safety and zoning
codes. Our highly qualified and certified inspectors are thoroughly trained on the codes in
use and master the local amendments of each code. They maintain a close working
relationship with planning, code enforcement and public works personnel. A CAA Building
Inspector will be available at all times to conduct urgent building inspections, should they
arise. A qualified Building Inspector will be provided whose background, experience,
applicable certifications and demeanor demonstrates the ability to conduct inspections in

accordance with jurisdictional standards.
Inspectors assigned to the City will:

e Coordinate all building inspection
requests

e Perform periodic construction
inspections for compliance on
projects under construction as
iIssued by permit from the City.
Each structure will be inspected for
compliance with the reviewed
plans, and Minimum Standards
and Code adopted by the City

o Perform all inspections according
to the adopted building codes and
ocal amendments

o Provide inspection consultations to
citizens, applicants, and
contractors

e Perform code clearance
inspections related to business
licenses, as necessary

o Inspect for code compliance for
accessibility, grading, building,
electrical, mechanical, and
plumbing work, etc.

ldentify and document any areas of
non-compliance, and suggest
corrective actions or alternate
means where applicable

Report code enforcement
violations to the City immediately.
CAA will submit a written record to
the City as a result of any
iInspection within 24 hours after
iInspection period

Assist with construction and
demolition permitting process

Observe all safety and security
procedures, and will report
potentially unsafe conditions
Immediately

Meet or exceed turn-around times,
conduct inspections when
requested, and provide timely and
effective emergency response.
CAA will perform all inspections
called in before 4pm no later than
the end of the following business
day

CAA

professional government services



Issue stop-work notices for non-
conforming building activities as
required

Provide code administration,
iInspection and enforcement

Provide complete, clear, concise
corrections for the permit holder;
corrections will be provided in a
legible list and presented in a
professional manner. Inspection
reports will include at minimum: (a)
the date and time of inspection,

type of inspection, name of
inspector, list of violations,
corrective actions; and (b)

authorization to proceed or notice
of failure (whichever is applicable)

Be available with advance notice to
attend meetings with staff, public
officials, developers, contractors,
and the general public as needed
or directed in order to resolve
problems and issues quickly and
efficiently

Conduct any necessary or required
emergency inspections as directed
by the City. Investigations will
include field and office research,
follow-ups and preparation of
documentation

Maintain certification/registration
through ongoing training when
necessary

Communicate technical knowledge
In simplified terms to help
clients/customers comply with
regulations

Provide inspection reports with, at
minimum: (a) the date and time of
Inspection, type of inspection,
name of inspector, list of violations,
corrective actions; and (b)

authorization to proceed or notice
of failure (whichever is applicable).
CAA personnel will be available to
discuss inspection results with
appropriate site personnel, resident
and/or owner, as needed

Provide detailed weekly, monthly,
quarterly, and annual reports of our
activities to the City. The reports
will include, but are not limited to,
fees collected, staffing levels
provided, staff hours expended, the
number of inspections made, and
other financial, operational, and
statistical information pertinent to
the services provided

Provide additional services as
needed and as requested by the
City

Residential and Commercial Building Plan Review

CAA will provide the plan review of any and all types of structures including, but not limited
to, single family dwellings, multi-family dwellings, industrial and commercial buildings for
compliance with all local ordinances and State and Federal laws that pertain to Building and
Safety, and for compliance with the adopted Building Code. Plan review will be performed in-
house and off-site. CAA thoroughly and promptly reviews all plans for compliance with all
local ordinances and State and federal laws pertaining to Building Codes, and for compliance
with the adopted Building Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code, Mechanical Code,
Disabled Access requirements, Energy requirements, and/or Fire Code.

Our approach to plan review ensures that plans submitted to CAA for review are properly
tracked and processed. Our system ensures that each plan or permit is assigned, returned,
and handled on time and within budget. The status of any plan can easily be determined at
any point in time.

Our registered professionals and certified plan examiners review all plans and calculations,
thus assuring that the technical components and all code items are thoroughly reviewed.

CAA

professional government services



Most of our plans examiners are cross-trained and also certified as inspectors, providing a
very efficient use of personnel and expediting the process for the applicant. We provide
timely turnaround of plan reviews and re-reviews based on guaranteed turn-around times.
Our staff also handles any coordination required as part of the review.

A certified plan reviewer will conduct a reasonable and lawful plan review of submitted
construction documents for compliance with the following items:

Administrative Requirements

Construction Documents shall be reviewed
for their accuracy, completeness, proper
supporting documentation, required
signatures and seals.

Building Planning Requirements

Submitted plans shall be reviewed for use
and occupancy classifications based upon
potential fire hazard, height and area
limitations, type of construction
classification, fire resistance rating of
building elements and their respective
requirements, special use and occupancy.

Occupant Needs Requirements

CAA certified plans examiners will review
submitted construction documents for
compliance with means of egress;
accessibility (when contracted or in
conjunction with local Fire Marshals); the
interior environment requirements for room
sizes, ceiling height, light and ventilation.

Architectural

CAA staff is certified and experienced in
all phases of architectural review,
Including construction types, occupancies,
separations, heights, areas, egress
means, and fire/life safety. CAA staff will
bring many years of experience to the
City’'s review and inspection process with
respect to size, shape, and use of
buildings with varying complexities. Many
of CAA’s staff are active in architectural
code promulgation at the state and
national level and several sit on
International Code Council (ICC)
committees.

Structural System and Material
Requirements

CAA'’s plan review structural engineers
have reviewed structural plans with

varying degrees of construction complexity
from single-family homes to high-rise
multi-use facilities. Structural drawings are
reviewed by a licensed engineer in order
to verify code compliance for all gravity
loads, lateral loads and special loading
conditions. Calculations are reviewed for
completeness; materials indicated on the
plans are identified and reviewed for
conformance.

Mechanical, Plumbing, and Electrical
System Requirements

These systems are reviewed for code
compliance with respect to their
construction, installation, inspection,
operation and maintenance as well as any
potentially adverse interactions.

Energy

CAA staff members are certified and
familiar with the Energy Efficiency
Standards for Residential and Non-
Residential Buildings. Extensive annual
training ensures that each staff member is
aware of the specifics of their respective
state programs. Plans and supporting
documentation is reviewed for
completeness, accuracy and minimum
code compliance.

Accessibility

CAA staff attends ICC training relative to
disabled access. CAA staff takes disabled
access seriously and has been proactive
on Accessibility Compliance Committees.
Engineers, plans examiners, and certified
personnel are fully trained and familiar
with ADA and The Georgia Accessibility
Code. CAA, when requested will offer plan
review support to local Fire Marshals and
their respective municipalities in
compliance enforcement.

CAA

10

professional government services



LEED

CAA recognizes the importance of and
pursues environmentally conscious design
and development procedures consistent
with the U.S. Green Building Council
(USGBC) and Leadership in Energy &
Environmental Design (LEED) certification
standards. CAA has staff certified through
the LEED process that are available to
review City development projects that are
required to have LEED Certification(s).

Green Building Code Review

CAA will provide staff that is certified as
Green Building professionals when

Civil Engineering Plan Review

required. As with LEED certification, CAA
seeks to enhance and improve City
development projects through cooperation
and collaboration with stakeholders.

CAA has taken extensive steps to
implement and use more efficient or
‘green’” service options to its clients. CAA
can provide various communication
options, including electronic plan review,
video conferencing and virtual permit
specialist to our clients and applicants to
reduce environmental impacts such as
paper use, travel and commute impacts —
all intended to reduce CAA’s and the City’s
carbon footprint.

CAA will assist the City in meeting its engineering plan review needs. Our assigned Engineer
and designated staff will perform civil engineering plan review to ensure all work is completed
in a timely manner. CAA will review grading and erosion control plans as they relate to
assigned land development projects, and will provide professional engineering review of
hydrology and hydraulic calculations, retaining wall calculations, and other structural

calculations as needed.

The following are the key engineering tasks CAA proposes to perform:

e Provide engineering review services consistent with the City’s requirements and

expectations.

o Attend meetings with City Staff, public officials, community leaders, developers,
contractors and the general public pertinent to development projects, as needed

e Provide general engineering consultation regarding land development, and erosion

sediment control,

o Review existing procedures, operation and maintenance of storm-drains and other land
development activities and make appropriate recommendations to the City.

o Establish working relationships and coordination with other public agencies, City
departments, and private utilities involving engineering matters affecting the City.

o Provide staff assistance on issues before the Public Works and Planning Commissions,

as needed.

o Provide application and case processing support related to all land-use entitlement and

development review activities.

e Provide such necessary and related functions as are normal practice for engineering
review and control of private developments, including but not limited to: grading, streets
improvement, storm drain, sanitary sewers reviewing and conditioning of land divisions
and development —commercial, and industrial plan checking; drainage and

hydraulics/hydrology reviews.

o Review tentative development plans and provide recommendations on control.

CAA

11

professional government services



o Establish working relationships with the various utility companies.

o Review storm water control plans and stormwater pollution prevention plans.

Plan Review Timeframes

All initial reviews will be returned within 5 business days for single family residential, small
commercial projects, and improvement plans. Rechecks will be returned within 5 working
days. These are maximum times, and we typically are able to turn around simple plan
reviews in less than half the time.

Single Family Dwelling 5 days
Re-Review 5 days
Tenant Improvements 5 days
New Commercial/Industrial (< than 10 million valuation) / days
New Commercial/Industrial (> than 10 million valuation) 15 days
Revisions to Approved Plans 1-5 days

Permitting Software

CAA has been providing the City with a standard version of L</
CityTech Solutions, our own customized Permit Issuance and jh_ o
Inspection Tracking tool that allows for an efficient and C CltyTeCh
accountable level of service to be delivered to the City and /ST(\ SOLOTIONS

contractors. This software system is provided at no cost to the City, and includes:

Access to Contractor State license records.
Ability to use iPads or comparable field tablets for technological efficiencies
IPads are provided to all inspectors.
Ability to attach PDF and photos to permit file.
Searchable database by any field.
Report types include at minimum:
» Daily inspection and plan review logs.
» |nspection/plan review turnaround times.
»  Pass/fail status.
= Revenue stream by permit type.

e © e & o o

Additional modifications and customizations beyond the standard version can be provided at
an additional cost.

12

professional government services



STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

Since our incorporation in 1984, CAA has grown to a full-time staff of over 200
employees. CAA has a record of very low staff turnover, which has proven highly
beneficial to our clients. We employ a fully credentialed, cross-trained staff that effectively
meets our building and safety commitments to our clients. Each one of our team
members has worked on similar projects and served the public sector for many years.
CAA's proposed staff of highly qualified inspectors is well trained, experienced and
familiar with the adopted codes.

Staff Training

Maintaining high quality services is what has made CAA as successful as we are today.
We understand that having experienced and qualified personnel is a fundamental
requirement of being able to delivery quality service to our clients, and we place
considerable effort in attracting and retaining our highly trained staff.

We provide our staff with on-going training, both in-house and with other professional
seminars and classes. This training makes sure that staff has the knowledge and other
resources available to help them provide high quality service to our customers.
Additionally, we provide financial incentives to encourage participation in obtaining
certain nationally recognized certifications. The knowledge obtained in achieving these
certifications helps our professionals to keep up with the “State of the Art” and therefore
gives us the ability to constantly improve the quality of service we are able to deliver to
our clients.

Resumes

CAA employs full time personnel to staff municipal work engagements. The firm recruits
individuals who are looking for long-term employment with a stable firm and a rewarding
career. We are proposing experienced staff that meets the City’s required qualifications
and possess all certifications and registrations as required by state agencies. Our team
will work seamlessly as team members of your staff, thus effectively augmenting their
efforts and reach.

Tim Inglis, CBO, will continue to serve as the designated Project Manager for the City,
ensuring our policies, procedures, and manpower will provide the level of service the City
desires. He will supervise the project and maintain continuous communication with the
City to ensure that the City is 100% satisfied with our staff, our turnaround times, the
quality of our work, and the overall teamwork between our staff and yours. Any
shortcomings from the City's perspective will be dealt with promptly.

13

professional government services



Tim Inglis, CBO

Regional Director KEY QUALIFICATIONS

Years o Experience ) Extensive Building & Community
20+ Development Experience
Education

) Public Works Management Experience
M.P.A. in Public Administration, Georgia

Southern University > Very Strong Project and Program

B.S. in Construction Management, Georgia Management Capabilities

Southern University

Certifications ) Planning/Organizational Development

Building Official

Building Code Specialist

Zoning Inspector

Building Inspector

Housing Code Official

Building Code Official

ICC/AACE Property Maintenance and Housing Inspector
Residential Combination Inspector
Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner
Building Plans Examiner

NAHB Certified Green Professional
AEE Building Analyst Professional

Professional Memberships

National Contract Management Association
International Code Council (ICC)
Association of Energy Engineers
Greater Atlanta Home Builders Association

Mr. Inglis has worked in the building and community development profession for over 20
years. He has been employed in the private sector since 2006, successfully bringing a
modern approach to building inspection programs to cities and counties across the State
of Georgia. Specifically, he worked to successfully lead the transition of the newly
iIncorporated cities in North Fulton as well as the City of South Fulton from the traditional
county model to a more efficient and effective privatized model. During his career, he
has been involved with several large projects such as the KIA Manufacturing Plant in
WestPoint, the Performing Arts Center in Newnan, the JCB Manufacturing Plant in
Pooler, and the Recreation and Athletic Complex in Young Hatrris.



William Hart, CBO

Certified Building Official KEY QUALIFICATIONS
Years of Experience ) Hands-on Construction Experience
18+

) Multiple Certifications
Professional Memberships

ICC, GSWCC, BOAG > supervisory Experience
Certifications > Excellent Project Management Skills
Building Inspector

Commercial Building Inspector > Customer Service Oriented

Residential Building Inspector

Building Plans Examiner

Residential Mechanical Inspector
Residential Plumbing Inspector
Residential Electrical Inspector
Residential Plans Examiner
Residential Combination Inspector
Commercial Plumbing Inspector
Plumbing Inspector

Plumbing Plans Examiner

Commercial Mechanical Inspector
Mechanical Inspector

Mechanical Plans Examiner
Accessibility Inspector/Plans Examiner
Building Codes and Standards Module
Legal Module

Building Official

Mechanical Code Specialist

Building Code Specialist

Plumbing Code Specialist

Georgia Soil and Water Conservation Commission Level |A Certified Inspector
Georgia Soil and Water Conservation Commission Level IB Certified Inspector
CAL OES

BOAG Combination Inspector

Mr. Hart has over 15 years of residential building construction experience, as well as
extensive experience in conducting building inspections to ensure construction meets
local and national building codes and ordinances, zoning regulations, and contract
specifications. He currently serves as a combination building inspector for many of our
Georgia clients, including the cities of Albany, Stockbridge, South Fulton, Palmetto,
Hogansville and Jackson.

Relevant Experience

Building Inspector for the cities of Manchester, Palmetto, Griffin, Riverdale, and Forest
Park. Deputy Building Official for the City of South Fulton and Building Official for the
City of Manchester.

CAA professional services 15




Brian Epstein, CBO

Certified Building Official

Years of Experience

23+

Professional Memberships

Midwest Georgia Inspectors Association
Building Officials Association of Georgia
Metro Atlanta Inspectors Association
International Code Council

Certifications

|ICC Certifiec
|CC Certifiec

ICC Certifiec
Specialist

Building Code Specialist
Plumbing Code Specialist
Mechanical Code

ICC Certified Accessibility
Inspector/Plans Examiner

|CC Certified
|CC Certified
ICC Certifiec
ICC Certifiec
ICC Certifiec
CC Certifiec
CC Certifiec
CC Certified

CC Certified
nspector

CC Certified
nspector

CC Certified
nspector

Building Inspector
Building Plans Examiner
Building Code Official
Building Official

Housing Code Official
Mechanical Code Official
Plumbing Code Official
Combination Inspector
Commercial Building

Commercial Combination

Commercial Electrical

KEY QUALIFICATIONS

) Project Management Experience
) Hands-on Construction Experience

) Multiple Certifications

ICC Certified Commercial Mechanical
Inspector

|CC Certified Commercial Plumbing
Inspector

|CC Certified Electrical Inspector

|ICC/AACE Property Maintenance &
Housing Inspector

|CC Certified Mechanical Inspector

|ICC Certified Mechanical Plans
Examiner

ICC Certified Plumbing Inspector
ICC Certified Plumbing Plans Examiner

ICC Certified Residential Building
Inspector

|CC Certified Residential Combination
Inspector

|CC Certified Residential Electrical
Inspector

ICC Certified Residential Mechanical
Inspector

ICC Certified Residential Plumbing
Inspector

Mr. Epstein has been a Building Official for over 23 years, has over 10 years
construction experience, and has extensive experience in transitioning services from the
traditional city/county model to the private model. He currently serves as the Building
Official for the City of South Fulton and other smaller surrounding cities.

professional services



Lisa Kopro, PE

Registered Civil Engineer KEY QUALIFICATIONS

Years of Experience ) Registered Civil Engineer

17+
) Extensive Project Management

Education Experience

B.S. in Civil Engineering, North Carolina State
University

Graduate Work in Water Resources, Cal State
Long Beach, CA

> Municipal Experience
) Extensive Plans Review Experience

> Multiple Certifications
Certifications

GSWCCC Level |l Certified Design Professional > Excellent Interpersonal Skills
GSWCC Level | B Certified Inspector

Professional Affiliations
APWA

A licensed PE in GA, CA, SC, TX and CO, Ms. Kopro offers over 17 years of
experience with both municipal and private engineering services for various
municipalities. Specific items include: plan review, civil site inspections, contract
administration, erosion and sediment control review and inspections, pre-
bid/construction meetings. Ms. Kopro is currently involved in reviewing plans, issuing
permits and performing construction inspections for various cities in metropolitan
Atlanta, including 4 million sf of industrial projects and the construction of a new sewer
line and pump plant for the City of Palmetto. She is also well versed in RFP writing
and project/program management for various aspects of City Engineering. Ms. Kopro
possesses strong communication and problem resolution skills, as well as strong
organizational skills. Ms. Kopro oversees the land development inspection division for
CAA, conducts preliminary and final plat reviews, oversees flood plain management,
and assists with erosion and sediment control review and other related tasks as
needed.

Recent Project Experience

« Civil Engineer at the City of Palmetto, GA
« Civil Engineer at the City of Riverdale, GA
« Civil Engineer at the City of Manchester, GA

professional services



REFERENCES

The following contains a list of our Georgia clients, with an outline of services provided to
each client, as well as the period of time that we have been performing the referenced
service. We are extremely proud of our track record and the length of time we have
continuously provided services to our clients, and invite you to contact any of them to
obtain their opinion of the services we provide for their cities.

REFERENCES

SERVICES

SINCE

Monroe County

Jim Hedges, County Manager

(478) 994-7000

38 W. Main Street Forsyth, GA 31029

Building & Safety

2020

City of Adairsville

Pam Madison, City Manager

(770) 773-3451

116 Public Square, Adairsville, GA 30103

Building & Safety

2020

City of Thomaston

Russell Thompson, City Manager

(706) 647-4242

106 East Lee Street, Thomaston, GA 30286

Building & Safety

2020

City of Austell

Ollie B. Clemons Jr, Mayor

(770) 944-4300

5000 Austell-Powder Springs Road, Ste 141, Austell
GA 30106

Building & Safety

2020

Bartow County

Brandon Johnson, Community Development Director
(770) 607-6311

135 West Cherokee Avenue, Cartersville, GA 30120

Building & Safety

2020

City of Tifton

Pete Pyrzenski, City Manager
(229) 338-3860

130 1st St E, Tifton, GA 31794

Building & Safety

2020

Butts County

Steve Layson, County Manager

(770) 775-8200

625 West 3rd Street, Jackson, Georgia 30233

Building & Safety

2020

City of Emerson

Todd Heath, Assistant City Manager
(770) 382-9819

700 Highway 293, Emerson, GA 30137

Building & Safety

2019

Spalding County

Chad Jacobs, Community Development Director
(770) 467-4254

119 E. Solomon Street, Griffin, GA 30223

Building & Safety

2019

City of Covington
Mary Darby, Planning & Zoning Director
(770) 385-2178

Building & Safety

2018

CAA

professional government services

18




2116 Stallings Street, Covington, GA 30014

City of Albany/Dougherty County

Paul Forgey, Director Planning, Development
Services & Code Enforcement

(229) 438-3901

240 Pine Avenue, Suite 300, Albany, GA 31702

Building & Safety

2017

City of Jackson

Kay Pippin, Mayor

(770) 775-7535

134 South Oak Street, Jackson, GA 30233

Building & Safety

2017

City of Peachtree City

Dave Borkowski, City Engineer

(770) 631-2538

153 Willowbend Rd., Peachtree City, GA 30269

City Engineering Plan
Review

2017

City of Stockbridge

Randy Knighton, City Manager

(678) 833-3354

4640 North Henry Boulevard, Stockbridge, GA 30281

Building & Safety

2017

City of South Fulton

Shayla Reed, Community Development Director
(470) 809-7700

Industrial Blvd. Atlanta, GA 30336

Building & Safety

2017

City of Dahlonega

Bill Schmid, City Manager

(706) 864-6133

465 Riley Road, Dahlonega, GA 30533

Building & Safety

2016

City of Hogansville

Lisa Kelly, City Clerk

(706) 637-8629

400 East Main Street, Hogansville, GA 30230

Building & Safety

2016

City of Brookhaven

Patrice Ruffin, Director of Community Development
(404) 637-0500

4362 Peachtree Road, Brookhaven, GA 30319

Building & Safety
Code Enforcement

2015

City of Forest Park

James Shelby, Interim Director

(404) 608-2300

785 Forest Parkway, Forest Park, GA 30297

Building & Safety

2014

City of Manchester

Doug Westberry, City Manager

(706) 846-3141

P.0O. Box 366, Manchester, GA 31816

Building & Safety
Code Enforcement

2014

City of Griffin
Kenny Smith, City Manager (770) 229-6406
100 South Hill Street, Griffin, GA 30223

Building & Safety

2014

City of Riverdale
Scott Wood, City Manager
(770) 909-5480

Building & Safety
City Engineering
Public Works

2012

CAA

professional services




971 Wilson Road, Riverdale, GA 30296

City of Palmetto Building & Safety 2012
William Shell, City Administrator City Engineering
(770) 463-3377
509 Toombs Street, Palmetto, GA 30268
20

professional services




COST PROPOSAL

The fees outlined below are inclusive of all costs, including general and administrative,
travel, per diem, training, materials, supplies, and other items necessary to complete the
project.

Building Plan Review and Inspection Services

Based on the adoption of a valuation-based fee schedule, CAA proposes to provide all
Residential and Commercial Building Plan Review and Inspection Services for the
following share of total fees calculated and collected for the assigned project:

Monthly Fees Collected* CAA’s % of Fees

All building permit fees collected 65%

Civil Engineering Plan Review and Consulting Services

CAA offers to provide Engineering Plan Review and Consulting Services at the following
hourly rates:

Service Provided Hourly Rate
Project Engineer $132
Associate Engineer $110

If the City desires additional services outside the scope of this proposal, those services
can be negotiated.

21

professional services



CITY COUNCIL Jonathan Lynn, City Manager

Mayor Bill Stankiewicz
Reginald Jackson, Post 1

Marichal Price, Post 2 \

Mandy Neese, Post 3

Lisa Kelly, Assistant City Manager
Alex Dixon, City Attorney

400 E Main St

Mark Ayers, Post 4 Hogansville GA 30230-1196

Toni Striblin, Post 5 l_l O( | AN SV[LLE 706-637-8629 | cityofhogansville.org

GEORGIA

COUNCIL ACTION FORM

MEETING DATE: December 21, 2020 SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Lynn

AGENDA TITLE: Adoption of Permit Fee Schedule for 2021

CLAMSSIFICATION (City Attorney must approve all ordinances, resolutions and contracts as to form)

I:I Ordinance (No. ) I:I Contract I:I Information Only I:I Public Hearing

|:| Resolution (No. ) D Ceremonial X Discussion/Action D Other

BACKGROUND (Includes description, background, and justification)

Request to adopt revised permit fee schedule to be effective January 1, 2021. These permit fees are those set fees
that are charged for building permits within Hogansville and are based off valuations and fee schedules that are
periodically updated by the International Code Council, which is the organization that handles all building and

construction code regulations.

Revised fee schedule includes a $25 administrative fee that is applied to all permits, a fee that is not shared revenue
with Charles Abbott Associates.

BUDGETING & FINANCIAL IMPACT (Includes project costs and funding sources)

No negative budget impact to the City as fees are paid by contractors.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Include possible options for consideration)

Staff recommends the City Council adopt updated permit fee schedule for 2021.




1 4 R . k B : L | ! "y
o Bl e I_.-.-'-' FE N S | 1 S EWalR H } | — T

Calcuilitins Unless otherwise stated, the valuation for all new construction will be based on the actual
R 9 contract cost of the work or calculated by using the latest construction cost data as published
Building i th ot . : : .
Valaation in the Building Safety Journal by the International Code Counmll. f_:or Intenc.r Completion only,
the construction cost is valued at 50% of the calculated ICC building valuation.
Fee Payment Plan review fees are non-refundable and due at time of application.
Residential Plan Review $150
Plan Review Fee ” 0 : e
Commercial/Industrial Plan Review gggg;onal 90% of permit fee (minimum
Minimum Permit Fees Residential - $150 |Commercial - $200
TOTAL VALUATION FEE
$14 for each $1,000, or fraction
$1 to $25,000 thereof, to and including $25,000
$350 for the first $25,000plus $10 for
$25,001 to $50,000 each additional $1,000, or fraction
thereof, to and including $50,000
’ $600 for the first $50,000 plus $7 for
: $50,001 to $100,000 each additional $1,000, or fraction
Permit Fees |thereof, to and including $100,000
$950 for the first $100,000 plus $6 for
$100,001 to $500,000 each additional $1,000, or fraction
thereof, to and including $500,000
$3,350 for the first $500,000 plus $5
1$500,001 to $1,000,000 for each additional $1,000, or fraction
thereof, to and including $1,000,000
$5,850 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3
$1,000,001 and up for each additional $1,000, or fraction
thereof
Certificate of New commercial building $100
Occupancy or : :
Completion (C/O New single family detached, condo, townhome $50
C/C New or renovated commercial tenant space $50
$80 + $5.00 for each $1,000 or fraction
Electrical, Plumbing, HVAC, etc. thereof, of valuation of work being
Trade Permits done.
(MEPs)
T-Pole or power reconnect $100
Interior demo (bldg or tenant space) $150
Demolition Single family residential house demo $150
Commercial building demo $300
Permit Residential extension $100
Extensions Commercial extension $200
Re-Inspections |Re-inspection fee $75
Re-submittal Re-submittal of all plans $100 each re-submittal

$100
$200
$150

Transfer of Permit/change of contractor

Structure move

Other (Plan =
Review Included) |Siding replacement

Residential Re roof $150




$200 + $5.00 for each $1,000 or fraction

Commercial Re-roof thereof, of valuation of work being done.

Fence Permit and Res. Portable Storage Bld./carport |$75

Swimming Pool- in ground Residential - $500 |Commercial - $650
Swimming Pool - above ground/ hot tub Residential - $300

Inspections outside of normal business hours $125 per hour (3 hour minimum)
Replacement of permits, CO's, etc. $25

Minor Plan Revision Reviews - Review on changes to {$100 Residential
plans after approval $200 Commercial

Original permit fee + 100% penalty

Fee for work done without a permit (double permit fee)

Temporary Construction Trailer 13100

‘F’reliminaryl code compliance/ safety inspections |$100

Administrative Fee $25 (all permits)



CITY COUNCIL Jonathan Lynn, City Manager

Mayor Bill Stankiewicz C ity Of HO ganSVille Lisa Kelly, Assistant City Manager

Reginald Jackson, Post 1 Alex Dixon, City Attorney
Marichal Price, Post 2

Mandy Neese, Post 3 2 o LN 400 E Main St
Mark Ayers, Post 4 ! ; Hogansville GA 30230-1196
Toni Striblin, Post 5 706-637-8629 | cityofhogansville.org

COUNCIL ACTION FORM
MEETING DATE: December 21, 2020 SUBMITTED BY: Lynne Miller ©
AGENDA TITLE: Legal Services Agreement for USDA City Hall Loan

CLASSIFICATION (City Attorney must approve all ordinances, resolutions and contracts as to form)

I:l Ordinance (No. ) I:I Contract I:I Information Only I:l Public Hearing

D Resolution (No. ) D Ceremonial X Discussion/Action D Other

BACKGROUND (Includes description, background, and justification)

The City of Hogansville has been approved by USDA for a $373,000 long-term, low interest loan to convert the vacant
PNC building into the new City Hall.

USDA is requiring a Legal Services Agreement specifically for this loan. The City Attorney will provide these loan-
related services under a separate contract with the City, to meet USDA requirements.

BUDGETING & FINANCIAL IMPACT (Includes project costs and funding sources)

This Legal Services Agreement will enable a $373,000 40-year, 2.125% low interest USDA loan to renovate the PNC
building so it can become the new City Hall. The $373,000 loan will require a $23,500 local match. The required
legal services agreement will be billed at a rate not to exceed $4,000.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Include possible options for consideration)

Approve the proposed Legal Services Agreement with City Attorney Alex Dixon, as required by the USDA for the PNC
City Hall renovation project.




UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
RURAL DEVELOPMENT

Legal Services Agreement

This agreement made this day of December, 2020, between the CITY OF
HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA, hereinafter referred to as the “Public Body,” and ALEX L.
DIXON, hereinafter referred to as the “Attorney.”

WHEREAS, the Public Body is a political subdivision of the State of Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Public Body intends to renovate the building located 111 High Street,

Hogansville, Troup County, Georgia, in order for such property to serve as the new City
Hall for the City of Hogansville, Georgia; and

WHEREAS, the Attorney agrees to perform all legal services necessary to the planning,
financing, and construction of the aforementioned purchases;

WITNESSETH

That for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises between the parties
hereto, it is hereby agreed:

SECTION A - LEGAL SERVICES

That the Attorney will perform such services as are necessary to accomplish the above
recited objectives including, but not limited to, the following:

1. Furnish advice and assistance to the governing officials of the Public Body in
connection with (a) the notice for and conduct of meetings; (b) the preparation of minutes of
meetings; (c) the preparation and enactment of such resolutions and ordinances as may be
necessary in connection with authorizations, financing, construction, and operation of the
system; (d) the preparation of such affidavits, publication notices, ballots, reports,
certifications, and other instruments and advice as may be needed in the conduct of such
bond elections as may be necessary; (e) the preparation and completion of such bonds or
other obligations as may be necessary to finance the improvements to the system; (f) the
completion and execution of documents for obtaining a loan made or insured or a grant made
by the United States of America, acting through Rural Development; (g) entering into
construction contracts; (h) preparation and adoption of ordinances concerning Rules and
Regulations, rate schedules, etc.; and (i) such other corporate action as may be necessary in
connection with the purchasing of the vehicles and equipment;

2. Review of any construction or procurement contracts, bid letting procedute,
and surety and contractual bonds in connection therewith; and



3. Cooperate with the city officials regarding the preparation of any necessary title
documents, permits, and other instruments,

SECTION B - COMPENSATION

. The Public Body will pay to the Attorney for professional services rendered in
accordance herewith, fees as follows:

The Public Body will pay the Attorney at the rate of $175.00 per hour plus
expenses. Total hourly billing will not exceed $3,500.00 and total expenses will
not exceed $250.00.
2 The fees specified in Paragraph 1 above will be payable monthly upon submission
of appropriate invoice.

CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA (SEAL)

BY:

Mayor

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Al @2}\

Alex L. Dixon, City At




CITY COUNCIL Jonathan Lynn, City Manager

Mayor Bill Stankiewicz
Reginald Jackson, Post 1

Marichal Price, Post 2 \

Mandy Neese, Post 3

Lisa Kelly, Assistant City Manager
Alex Dixon, City Attorney

400 E Main St

Mark Ayers, Post 4 Hogansville GA 30230-1196

Toni Striblin, Post 5 H O ( ANSVILL E 706-637-8629 | cityofhogansville.org

GEORGIA

COUNCIL ACTION FORM

MEETING DATE: December 21, 2020 SUBMITTED BY: Jonathan Lynn
AGENDA TITLE: Approval of Change Order #1 for Tower Trail Phase V — Trail Routing

CLASSIFICATION (City Attorney must approve all ordinances, resolutions and contracts as to form)

I:I Ordinance (No. ) |:I Contract D Information Only D Public Hearing

X Discussion/Action D Other

BACKGROUND (Includes description, background, and justification)

|:| Resolution (No. ) l:l Ceremonial

Easement issues have caused the City to reassess the trailhead for the Tower Trail Phase V project. The City reviewed
several options including obtaining an easement, condemnation for the portion needed for the trailhead, and
rerouting the trailhead through the City’s property directly adjacent to the area reviewed for
easement/condemnation.

The City was not able to obtain an easement and would have more than likely received a favorable ruling via
condemnation proceedings but the associated costs to move through that process would be substantially more than
the proposed rerouting as part of this change order request.

The requested option at this time is the rerouting the trailhead to go directly through the City’s property along the lot
line at 111 High Street in the amount of $49,635. The additional funding would be taken from the City’s SPLOST

allocation and bring the total project cost to $407,249.25.

BUDGETING & FINANCIAL IMPACT (Includes project costs and funding sources)

Increase in project costs by $49,635 and will be taken from the City’s SPLOST Allocation.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION (Include possible options for consideration)

Staff recommends the City Council approve Change Order #1 in the amount of $49,635 for Tower Trail Phase V
project to be funded from the City’s SPLOST allocation.




S
FALCON N DESIGN

*ENGINEERING * LAND PLANNING * SURVEYING *
FCONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT * LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE®
WWW.FDC-LLC.COM

December 17, 2020

Mr. Jonathan Lynn

City Manager — Hogansuville
400 East Main Street
Hogansville, GA 30230

RE: City of Hogansville — Tower Trail Phase V
Project Number: NRT-18(12)
Change Order No. 1

Dear Mr. Lynn,

Falcon Design Consultants, LLC (FDC) has created “Change Order No. 1" to adjust the contract price for the City of
Hogansville's “Tower Trail Phase V" project due to changes in the proposed trail routing near the post office. This
change order reflects the additional cost to construct the revised routing.

This change order includes additional items for the installation of a retaining wall, additional handrail, header curb,
and additional grading.

“Change Order No. 1" creates a net increase in the contract price of $49,635.00. The project’s adjusted contract
amount is Four Hundred Seven Thousand Two Hundred Fourty-Nine Point Twenty-Five Dollars ($407,249.25).
Attached is a copy of “Change Order No. 1” for your use.

Should you have any questions, please contact us at 770-755-7978.

—

James L. Jones lll, P.E.

Sincerely,

Senior Project Manager

Falcon Design Consultants, LLC.

Attachments:  Change Order No. 1

STOCKBRIDGE OFFICE: 235 Corporate Center Dr., Suite 200, Stockbridge, GA 30281 / Phone: 770.389.8666
CUMMING OFFICE: 500 Pirkle Ferry Road, Suite C, Cumming, GA 30040 / Phone: 678.807.7100
NEWNAN OFFICE: 40 Greenway Circle, Suite A, Newnan, GA 30265 / Phone: 770.755.7978



_ ' Change Order
Tower Trail Phase V
No. 1

B T — —— N,
B — e e e —

Date of Issuance: December | 1,2020 i Effecti\fte: Decener 11,2020

Project: Pedestrian Trail Owner: City of Hogansville Owner's Contract No.: NRT-18(12)
Contract: Tower Trail Phase V — for the City of Hogansville, Date of Contract: September 14, 2020
Georgia)

Contractor: Piedmont Paving, Inc. Engineer's Project No.: N/A

The Contract Documents are modified as follows upon execution of this Change Order:
Description:
Revised routing of the tie-in portion of the concrete trail section.

Attachments (list documents supporting change):
Support Documentation Worksheet.

CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE: CHANGE IN CONTRACT TIMES:
Original Contract Price: Original Contract Times
Substantial completion days: 135 Calendar days
$ 357.614.25 Ready for final payment days: 150 Calendar days

Increase from previously approved Change Orders  Increase from previously approved Change Orders
Substantial completion days: 0 Calendar days

$ 0.00 Ready for final payment days: 0 Calendar days
Contract Price prior to this Change Order: Contract Times prior to this Change Order:
Substantial completion days: 135 Calendar days
$ 357,614.25 Ready for final payment days: 150 Calendar days
Increase of this Change Order: Increase of this Change Order:
Substantial completion (days or date): 18 days
$ 49,635.00 Ready for final payment (days or date): 18 days
ggg:lrga:'al;ﬁigﬁsi_ncorpurating this and all previous ¢4y ¢ract Times with all approved Change Orders:
Substantial completion days: 153 Calendar days
$ 407,249.25 Ready for final payment days: 168 Calendar days
RECOMMENDED: ACCEPTED: ACCEPTED:
Falcon Design Consultants, LL.C City of Hogansville, GA Piedmont Paving, Inc,
Date: 12/17/20 Date: Date: fl’! ﬁ,D

City of Hogansville, Georgia



Change Order #1
CITY OF HOGANSVILLE, GEORGIA

TOWER TRAIL - PHASE V

, NRT-18(12)
GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES FUNDING
GEORGIA RECREATIONAL TRAILS PROGRAM

Friday, December 11, 2020

PIEDMONT PAVING, INC,

1126 HIGHWAY 16 EAST
NEWNAN, GA 30263

ITEM | ESTIMATED TOTAL COST PER
NO. | QUANTITY DESCRIPTION COST UNIT

11,195.00
61,130.004 $ 61,130.00
211,000,00 § $ 211,000.00
25,420.00
2,232,00
1,772.25

|

MOBILIZATION AND TRAFFIC CONTROL (COMPLETE)
L.S.  ISITE CLEARING AND GRADING (COMPLETE)
LS. |6’ WIDE ELEVATED WOODEN WALKWAY (COMPLETE)
S.Y. 3000 PSI CONCRETE WALKWAY 6' WIDE x 4" THICK (COMPLETE)
L.F,  JTYPE S’ DOUBLE ROW SILT FENCING WITH HAY BALES
TONS JGDOT TYPE “lli* RIP-RAP INSTALLED

1 %" DIAMETER HOT DIPPED STEEL HANDRAIL (FURNISH AND
" [INSTALL COMPLETE) 26,382.000% 61.70

ACRE [PERMANENT GRASSING

L.S.

o |

< | W

$ 70.89

el

cC
!_ - - |§
‘ § o

1,166.00§ $ 2,200.00

I

22493.000 % 22,493.00

$ 21,450.00

LS, JGRADING COMPLETE
LS.,  JBLOCK RETAINING WALL 21,450.00

| ACRE _ s 220000
SLOPE STABILIZATION MATTING 3,645.00
CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 1,875.00
CHANGE ORDER 1 o
GRAONGCOMPLETE | s zano)
$ 245000

——
"
]

T
=
AL,
A
)
S
oo

LF, $ 36.00

e
- |
L
i
2

TOTAL $ 407,249.25



- Piedmont Paving, In
1226 Highway 16 East, Newnan, Georgia 30263
s Phone: 678-423-0686 Fax: 678-423-0588

. Contract Change Order Request
Project: Tower Trail Phasc 5

Date: 1213120;

| APPROX. UNIT '

ITEM | ' QUANTITY PRICE AMOUNT

1, Grading Complste =~ | 1 LS $22,493.00 $22,493.00
Includes: Layout b S
Sawcutting | |
Demo | |

| Earthwork | il

2. Blog¢ (wall | 1 LS $21,450.00 $21,450.00
Includes: 121 'x4' ‘ f

3¢ 1B“x12'*xa" Modular Blﬁck
67 Stone at Wall i'
Drainage Pipe behind Wall | _
3, HeaderCurb '~ | (145 LF  $3500 $6,076.00

Includes: B"x12" l—len':zu:!erCurl:uq . i |
4. Handrall B N 1$61.70 $617.00

~ Total Amount = $49,636.00
Notes. : | |

Please sign below and retu rn tu acknowledge approval and for PPI to proceed with work,
Submitted By: r L i i Bk

Signature:

 [Name:

Approvéd 'B'y:;_

Signature:
~ |Name:
Title

| Ga'm'p'a ny:




. _Ple‘d'mo-nt Pavind, Inc.
1226 Highway 16 East, Newnan, Georgia 30263
Phcne 678-423 0686 Fax: 678-423-0588

Conti‘act Change Order Request

Project: aner Trail Phaﬂe 5

' Date: 12/3/20 . 1

4 WashoutRepair | | | Labor/Equip. | Materlal |  Total
_{ggjudgs_'b_sgp TopsoilPlace r.m s;te $550 - | $550.00
| ~|Haul, Place & Compact 70 CY | F:II Materlal | T§3250 | $1,750 $6,000.00
 |Place 665 SF Geotextile Fabric_ 17 Tsaso | saso | $300.00
| | ‘PFHWEOTOB:#T!P??’RIM* ..... EEa il $1 a0 | %1750 | $3,150.00
Cﬁ"@ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ Tﬁﬁﬁ!}ﬂ t.-_.-_ | - s'!!__po.oo 4
|_$10,000.00

Notes: ' -
Please slgn belnw and return to acknowledge approva] and for PPI to pmeeed with work,

35 3ubmitted By.

SIgna_tum:

|Name: Andrew Trammel|

| Abpraﬁad By: %
|signature:
[Name:

ITitle

Company:




